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ACYTOGO (Rev TARTY Adtidavit tor Seargh Warrant . .
ORIRETE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURSERNERICT o,

Westers District of Arkansas Fj L, ED RKA N-S A8
[n the Matter of the Search of y SR, JORN
(Manmy, adedress or riel deseriplion of person or property 10 be searched) So

APPLICATION AND%FEM)AVf
FOR SEARCH WARRANT

104 Cirele rive

LFouke, Arkansas CASE NUMBER: ,.,\-—X "‘Og _SM —0'2_

I M. Randall Harris being duly sworn depose and say:

Fam a{n) _ Special Agenl ol the Federal Bureau of Tnvesligation and have rcason to belicve
Official Title

that on the person of or _X  on the property or premises KNOWN a8 (rame, description and or locatian)

100 Cirele Drive, Fouke, Arkansas (more fully described in Atlachment A)

i the Western District of Arkansas, there is now conccaled a ccrtain person ot property, namely (eserbe the person or property

for bie sedzecds

See Atlachment B
wWhich 18 e one or more butses for secrch and seigure set forth under Rule 310 (h) of the Federeal Riles of Crinenal Procedure)
See attached affidavit - continued on the attached sheet and made a part hereof.

concerning a violation of Title 18 United States Code, Section(s) __2423(a), 2251 and 2252
The facts to support a finding of Probable Causc arc as follows:

See attached affidavit - continued on the attached sheet and made a part hereof.

M, Kottt

Signature ol Affant
Sworn o belore me, and subscribed in my prescnce

Se olO 110(_3& al Texarkana, Arkansas
_é&(_:-' LD ok Lo 3.
DaeesTitre ivsteed

Jionorable Barry A, Bryant
LS, Magistrate Judge

Namne aind Title of Jodicial fficer

Stanature of Judicnl Officer




STATEMENT OF FACTS

I, M. Randall Harris, upon being duly sworn, depose and say
Lhe following is true according to my knowledge and belief:

INTRODUCTION

I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI) and have held that position for approximately
ninetesn {1%) years. My duties and responsibilities include the
investigation of posgsible criminal vielationz regarding
individuals who knowingly transport a minor in interstate
commercs for the purpose of engaging in any sexual activity with
a perason under the age of 18 years for which any perseon can be
charged with a criminal offenses namely, Arkansas State Statute 5-
14127, Sexual Assault in the Fourth Degree, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code (USC), Section 2423 (a)
(Transportation With Intent To Engage In Criminal Sexual Activity
With A Miner), and federal viclations regarding the production
and pesseggion of child pornography in viclation ot Title 18, USC
Sectiong 2251 and 225%2. 1 am currently involved in such an
investigation invoelving BERNIE HCOFFMAN, also known as (aka) TONY
ALAMC, whose principle regidence is 100 Circle Driwve, Fouke,
Arkansas, in the Western District of Arkansas. This affidavit is
in support of a search warrant for that premises located ab 100

Cirale Drive, PFouke, Arkansas.




DROBAEBLE CAUSH
Based on my interview of a female juvenile victim who is

presently 17 vears of age, identified hereafter as JUVENILE #1,
my interview of a second female juvenile victim who ia prezsently
17 years of age, identified hereafter as JUVENILE #2, my
interview of a third female juvenile victim who is pregently 14
vears of age, identified hereaffer asg JUVENILE 43, information
provided to me by a confidential source (C8) who is in a position
to provide reliable information as to activities ccocurring within
ALAMO's residence, information provided to me by LARRY PATTERSCN,

and; my own personal observations and experience, I know the

following:
1. JUWENILE #1 told me that when she was 8 years old, she
was residing in ALAMO's residence in Fouke, Arkansas. JUVENILE

#1 recalled thal on a day in January, ALAMO called her into his
bedroom at his rvesidence in Fouke, Arkansas, and told her to lay
on hig bed and then ATAMO lay next to her. ALAMO began asking
her varicous ¢uestions regarding whether she had a boyfriend or if
she liked anyone. JUVENILE #1 stated that during this entire
tims ATAMO had placed hig hands down the front of her pants and
was "feeling around." JUVENILE #1 stated that for a period of
time after that January, ALAMO would continue to call her into
his kedroom and place hiz hands down her pants.

2. JUVENILE #1 told me that on May 17, 2000, when she was @

vears old, she and ALAMO cxchanged wedding vows. Following the




exchange of vows, ALAMO hegan to fondle JUVENILE #1 over her
clothes and then placed his hand dewn her pants and began to
vaginally penetrate her with his [ingers. ALAMO told her that he
would not hurt her and that he was "trying to net make her a
virgin any leonger." JUVENILE #1 described the incident as
painful. In the days and months following the exchange of vows,
ALAMC would often call JUVENILE #1 inte hig bedrcom at hig
residence in Fouke, Arvkansgas, wnere ALAMO would engage in what
JUVENILE #1 described as foreplay. JUVENILE #1 stated that
eventually, while she was still only 2 years old, ALAMO lay on
top of her and placed his erect penis into her vagina. JUVENILE
#l grated that ALAMO ejaculated ingide of her and subsequently
told her to "clean hevgelf up.”

3. JUVENILE #1 stated that from the time she was 9 years
old up until she was at least 12 vyears old, ALAMO took
rhotographs of her in various stages of dress. She stated these
photographs were taken by Alamo at his residence in Fouke. Some
of the photos ALAMO touk were cleose-ups of her genitalia with her
legs spread. According to JUVENILE #1, the photos were taken
with a Folarcid camera. JUVENILE #1 stated that ALAMO told her
he took the pictures because he wanted to look at them "all the
time." According to JUVENILE #1, ALAMO stored these pictures in
a locked cabinet in his bhedroom in the Fouke residence.

4. I am aware that the producticn and/or pogsezsion of any

vigual depiction of sexually explicit conduct of any person under




the age of 18 vyears old is a viclation of Title 18, USC Sections
2251 and 2252, Sexually explicit conduct is defined in Title 18
UsSC 2256 and means actual or simulated (1) sgexual intercourse,
including genital-genital, oral-genital, anal-genital, or oral-
anal, whelher between perscns of the same or opposgite zex; (ii)
begtiality; (iii} masturkbation; (iv) sadigtic or masochistic
abuse; or {v) lascivious exhibition of the genitalsz or pubic area
of any person.

5. LARRY PATTERSON of PATTERSON'S CAMERA SHOP told me that
Polavoid brand cameras are manufactured in the State of
Massachusetts and that the £film for Polaroid cameras is
manufactured cutgide the United States. Accordingly, any
FPolaroid camera utilized within the 5tate of Arkansas has
traveled in interstate commeroo.

6. JUVENILE #1 told me that she alsc knew that ALAMO had
taken similar pictures of other young girls who were also living
in ALAMO's house in Fouke, Arkansas. JUVENILE #1 told me that
one of thoge other girls had once found the key to ALAMO's locked
cabinet and found pictures of the other girls. JUVENILE #1
herself also had found nude photographs of one of the other voung
girle who was living in ALAMO's house. JUVENILE #1 found these
photographs under thalt young girl's bed.

7. JUVENILE #1 told me that ALAMO would watch adult
pornographic movies conn the Lelevigion in his bedroom, JUVENLLE

#1 told me that ALAMO would have her watch the adult pornographic




movies with him and that he wantcd her to wabtch the movies in
order to show her how to perform oral sex.

8. JUVENILE #2 told me that when she was only 11 years old,
ghe was living in ALAMO's housge in Fouke, Arkansas. ALAMO made
Lhe decigion that JUVENILE #2 was to become his wife. ALAMO had
told JUVENILE #2 that shce was to move into hig house with all of
her belongings. JUVENILE #2 was only 11 years old on March 27,
2003, when ghe wag "married" to ALAMO.

9. JUVENLILE #2 told me that the next day, March 28, 2003,
was the first time ALAMO had sexual contact with hoer by
penetrating her with hiz finger. JUVENILE #2 deacribked this as
the firat tCime she wag "raped" by ALAMO. JUVENILE #2 stated that
this type of sexual contact continued for several montha.
JUVENILE #2 stated she was cither almost 12 years old or had just
turned 12 years old when ALAMO summoned her to his room and asked
her if she wanled to have sex. JUVENILE #2 stated she shoolk her
head to indicate to him that she did not. ALAMO made her have
gex with him anyway. According to JUVENILE #2, ATLAMO was
forceful with her and demanded that she do it. JUVENILE #2 told
me the sex she was referring to was sexual intercourge. JUVENILE
#2 stated that ALAMO also had her perform oral sex on him.

10. JUVENILE #2 told me that ALAMO asked her if he could
Lake pictures of her in the nude. JUVENILE #2 stated she knew
that ALAMO had usgsed a Pclaroid camera to take picturez of some of

Lhe other girls. JUVENILE #2 stated she would not allow ALAMO to



take pictures of her, however, JUVENILE #2 also stated she knew
ALAMO kept the nude pictures of the other girle in a locked
cabinet in hia room.

11. JUVENILE #2 told me that in about January or February
2006, when she was 14 years old, she was taken by ALAMO on a trip
from Fouke, Arkansgas Lo Califcrnia. JUVENILE #2 traveled with
ALAMO on hiz "bus." JUVENILE #2 astated that en rcoute to
California ALAMO had sex with her while on the bus. After
arriving in California, ALAMO rented rooms at a motel located
about an hour away from his "Califernia compound." One night
ALAMO called JUVENILE #2 into his room at the motel for "massage
duty” and during that night, ALAMO had sex with her.

l2. JUVENILE #2 told me that ahout a year prior to my
interview of her which tock place in May 2008, she wasz in
California with her pavents and ALAMO wasg also there. JUVENILE
#2 would have been 15 years old when theze events occurred in
Californiza. During that tims, ATAMO had sex with her in a
bungalow ornn ALAMO's California compound. JUVENILE #2 stated she
wags brought back from California to Arkansas with ATAMO on his
bus. Aftcr reoturning to Arkansaszs, ATAMO had =2ex with her.

13. JUVENILE #3 told me that she was moved into ALAMO's
house 1in Fouke, Arvkansasg pricor to her 12th birthday. JUVENILE #3
stated thalb she had not yet turned 13 and believes that it was in
about huguat 2007 when ALAMO had sexual contact with her at his

residence in Fouke, Arkansas. JUVENILE #2 stated that she was




taking a shower in a hathroom adjacent to ALAMO's bathroom. At
agome point, JIVENILE #3 heard the hathroom door cpen and the
bathroom light was turned off. Someone got into the shower with
JUVENILE #3 and she realized that it was ALAMO. ALAMO placed his
hand over her mouth and told JUVENILE #2, "It's me." JUVENILFE #3
stated that ALAMO was naked and that she was scared and afraid tco
acream for fear of heing beaten. ALAMO penetrated her vagina
with his fingers and began rubbing her all over to include her
breasts. ALAMO kept one hand over her mouth while rubbing her
with his olher hand. JUVENILE #3 stated that ALAMO tried to get
her tco place her hand on his penis. Abcut that time, someone
knocked on the kathroom door. ALAMO told JUVENILE #3, "Don't you
dare tell anybhedy or I'll have someone take care of you."
JUVENTTLE #32 thought ghe would bhe bheaten if she told anvone and
she did not tell anyone because she was scared and embarrassed.
ALAMC later asked JUVENILE #3 if ghe had told anyone about what
happened, and agalin threatened her if she did.

14 . JJUVENLILE #3 told me that she knows JUVENILE #1 and that
ALAMO had taken JUVENILE #1 as a wife when JUVENILE 41 wasg only 8
years old.  JUVENILE #3 toeld me she knows JUVENILE #2 and stated
that JUVENILE #2 was raped by ALAMGC when JUVENILE #2 was a young
girl.

15. JUVENILE #3 tcld me that she knows that ALAMC has taken
pornographic pictures of some of the girls who live in his house.

JUVENILE #32 told me she was once cleaning ALAMO's room when one




of the other girlg found a box contalining nude photographs of the
cLther girls. JUVENILE #32 told me zhe Knows that ALAMO has movie
DVD's in his room. JUVENILE #3 is not certain whether any of
these DVD's are pornographic, however, JUVENILE #3 knows that one
ol the other girles living in ALAMO's house wag once caught
watching a pornographic movie in ALAMO's room.

l16. (8 teold me that ALAMO presently has approximately eight
yvourng females under the age of 18 living in his house. €8 told
me Lhat she has seen ALAMO go inte his bedroom with these voung
girle, scmetimes taking more than one girl at a time. C8 told me
she has heard ATAMO tell the voung girleg that he has candy bars
in his bedroom. ¢S also teld me that ALAMO has a Barbie doll
collection in hig room.

17. C5 told me that she knows JUVENILE #3 and that it was
C5's pelief that ALAMC wag "messing" with JUVENILE #3, (5
believes that ALAMO is also "messing" with three other young
girls who are living in his house. QS gtates that some of these
youndg girls are wearing rings. C5 has overheard conversations
among the females in ALAMO'sz house indicating that if a girl has
a ring, she has logt her virginity to ALAMO.

8. CS slLated there are at least nine computers in ALAMO'S
house and that ALAMO has accesgs to the Internet.

15. Through my training, expericnce, and consultations with
other law enforcement officers, I am aware that:

a, Individuals involved in the sexual exploitation of




children through child pornography almost alwayas keep copies of
their gexually explicit material for long periods of time,
cgpecially when they are used in the seduction of children.
Those materials are treated as prized possessions.

b, Individuals who are sexually attracted to children
usually collect sexually explicit materials inveolving children,
such as photographs, magazines, video tapes, books, zlides, and
computer images for their own sexual gratification., Because this
material ig illegal to openly purchase, the most common method of
acguiring it is by trading with other peaple with similar
interesta., T alsc know that child pernography is not available
in retail establishments and that people who wish to obtain child
pornography often do so by ordering it from abreoad or hy discreet
contact with other individuals who have it available.,

¢. Individuals involved in the collected and
diglribution of ¢hild pornography almost always maintain and
possass their materials 1n a place considered sccure due to ita
inherent illegality. Individualz who are procurers and
distributora of c¢hild pornegraphy or hard-core sexually explicit
pornographic materials that are contrary to law, exhibit similar
characteristics and will maintained their pictures, filma,
correspondence, and photographs in 2 secuve place, mest often, a
residence, to avoid detegtion by law enforcement.

d. Individuals who engage in child pornography or

hard-core sexually explicil pornography procurement or




distribution will most often collect, read, copy, or maintain
numbers or ligts of people who have gimilar interesta. Thege
conbacts are maintained as a means of personal referral,
exchange, and/or commercial profit.

e. Individual who produce, receive, transport,
posgess, distribute, and sell child pornograpliy contrary to law,
often keep records of their inveolvement in such activities.

Thege records may include, but are neot limited to, miner victima!
and associates' names and addresses and are used to produce,
create, transport, possess, distribute and sell child
pornography.

20, My obgervation of 100 Cilrcle Drive, Fouke, Arkansas,
discloged that it is a residence located on the west side of U.8,
Highway 71 and the north gide of downtown Fouke, Arkansas. The

residence faces Circle Driwve, which travels west off U.S. Highway

71. The residence can further be described as hrick veneer and
white siding. The roof is of tan shingles. On the northwest
corner of Lhe residence iz a scecond story. To the immediate
gouth of the residence 13 a awimming pocl. There i3 & concrete

parking area and a carport on the east side of the rezidence.




SUMMARY

In summary, based on the above [ have prcbable cause to
believe that BERNIE HOFFMAN, aka TONY ALAMO, hasg been involved in
the production and pesseszion of ¢hild pornegraphy in vielation
of Title 18, United States Code Section 2251 and Section 2252 and
the transpertation of a minor in interstate commerce for the
purposce of engaging in any sexual activity with a person under
the age of 18 years for which any person can be charged with a
c¢riminal offenge, namely, Arkansas S5tate Statute 5-14-127, saxual
agsault in the Fourth Degree, in violation of Title 18, United
States Code Section 2423 (a) and that evidence of these
violations, as more fully described in Attachment B to this
affidavic, existe and is concealed on the premises known as 100
Circle Trive, Fouke, Arkangas, which hasg been pictured and more
Fully described in Attachment A to this affidavit, Tt is
therefore requegted that a search warrant be issued for the
premiges known ag 100 Circle Drive, Fouke, Arkansas, autherizing

the search of the aforementioned premises for the itemzs described

M. Randall Harris
Special Agent, FBI

in Attachment B.

Sworrn to and subscribed before me this ZO“..?-—* day of
September, 2008

el

N o
U. 8. Magistf@té\Judge




ATTACHMENT B
L15T QF ITEMS TO BE SEIZED

a. Any and all photographs, cameras, film, or other aquipment
which may be, or are used to visually depict child pornography,
child erotica, information pertaining to the scexual interest in
child pornegraphy, sexual activity with e¢hildren or the
digztributiion, possgezgion or receipt of child pornography, child
erotica or information pertaining te an interest in child
pornography or child erotica.

k. Any and all correspondence pertaining to the possessaion,
recelpt or distribution of visual depictions of minors engaged in
sevually explicit conduct, a2 defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 2254.

o Any and all correspondence or records pertaining to the
travel in interstate commerce for the purposc of engaging in
sexual activities with minors. The term minors as used in this
list of items to be =seized meanz persons under the age of 18
YEATES.

d. Any and all books and magazines containing visual depictions
of minors engaged in gsexually explicit conduct, as defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256,

e, All eriginals and all copies and all negatives of visual
depicuiong of miners engaged in sexually explicit conduct, as
defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256.

f. Any and all moticn picture filmg and video casscttes of
visual depictions of minocrs cengaged in sexually explicit conduct,
- as defined in Title 18, United States Code, SBection 2256.

q. Any and all envelopes, letters, and other correspondence
offering to transmit through interstate commerce any visual
depicticons of miners engaged in sexually explicit conduct, as
defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256.

h, Any and all envelopes, letters, and other correspondence
identifying persong tranamitting, through interstate commerce,
any visual depiction or minors engaged in sexually explicit
conducl, as defined in Title 18, United Sbates Code, Section
2256,

i. Any and all diaries, neotebooks, notes and any other records
reflecting personal contact and any other activities with minors
vigually depicted while engaged in sexually explicit conduct as
defined in Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Section 2256,




7. Any and all materials and photographs depicting gexual
conduct between adults and minors or minors and minors.




ATTACHMENT A

RESIDENCE TO BE SEARCHED

The principal residence of Tony Alamo is 100 Circle Drive, Fouke, Arkansas which is
located on the west side of US Highway 71 and the north side of downtown Fouke,
Arkansas. The residence faces Circle Drive which travels west off of US Highway 71.
The residence is further described as brick vencer and white siding. The roof is of tan
shingles. On the northwest corner of the residence is a second story. To the immediate
south of the residence is a swimming pool. There is a concrete parking area and carport
on the east side of the residence. Sce photograph below.




